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August 12, 2013
Response to Second Round of Bidder Questions and Amendment #5 

For Request for Proposals (RFP) 13-03 ELECTRONIC PAYMENTS SERVICES 
To All Potential Bidders:

Attached are the Department’s responses to Questions received for the above referenced RFP.

Additionally, the Department is issuing Amendment #5 to:

· Amend Functional Requirement 2.11; and

· Amend Attachment 14 – Public Officers Law – Post Employment Restrictions; and
· Provide additional detail to Exhibit 1-J Sample Payment File Layout.  This additional detail is provided in the following link and should be considered a part of the RFP.
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Replacement pages are attached after Question Responses.  All deletions are shown as shaded, strike-through text, all additions are made in red text.  Please note that there are two appendices following the question responses which had been provided by a bidder.  These pages are not amendments and should not be considered replacement pages to the RFP. 
All other requirements and conditions remain as indicated in the RFP.

	#
	RFP Section
	RFP Page #
	Question
	Answer

	1
	General
	
	 Is it acceptable for us to respond to the RFP requirements in the context of how each of our proposed product solutions would meet your requirements? 


	Yes.  However the Bidder must propose a single solution for each requirement.

	2
	Article XIX – Secrecy Provisions
	
	Would the Department accept enterprise or department level execution of secrecy forms?
	Yes.  DTF is open to this possibility.

	3
	Financial Data
	27
	Is it permissible to provide links to requested financial information rather than hard copies?
	If the entity is a publicly held company, these documents can be obtained from the bidder’s website.  Web links provided by the bidders with these documents would be sufficient.

For privately held entities, submission of the audited financial statements and most recent interim statement via CD is sufficient.

	4
	1.14
	
	What does this TPP mean? I don’t think it is a valid SEC code. 
At a minimum, the Contractor must have the ability to process ACH Credit and Fedwire payments with the five following addenda record/layout formats:
1) CIE - Customer Initiated Entry
2) PPD - Prearranged Payment and Deposit entries 
3) CCD+ - Corporate Credit or Debit
4) CTX - Corporation Trade Exchange
5) TPP - Third Party Payment?
	NACHA recommends that the “TPP” convention be followed when formatting and transmitting remittance information in the addenda record of a CCD entry for certain “third-party tax payments.” 
Third-party tax payments (TPP) are those payments made by a third-party to a state taxing agency.

See NACHA ACH Operations Bulletin #2-2012 at:  https://www.nacha.org/sites/default/files/files/ACH_Rules/ACH_Operations_Bulletins/ACH%20Operations%20Bulletin%20-%20Third-Party%20Tax%20Payments%20Banking%20Convention%20-%20revised%2007%2023%2013.pdf


	5
	3.4 & 3.7
	
	The Contractor must be able to accept file transmission (from DTF) sizes ranging between 0 and 250,000 items per tax program.   
The Contractor must have the ability to accept a minimum of 1 gigabyte of data per ACH Debit payment file transmission.
Question: Will the file contain all transactions for the day or will multiple files throughout the day be sent?
	The Contractor must be able to accept and process multiple ACH Debit payment files sent for the same tax program during the same day. (See Functional Requirement 3.10).

	6
	1.7
	
	What is the retention period for incomplete transactions?
	Incomplete transactions must be retained for the life of the Contract.  

	7
	1.6
	
	Will all pre paid cards be branded by a recognized network, e.g. Visa, MasterCard, Discover, AMEX?
	Yes.  

	8
	2.11
	
	Will DLN range be specific to the Contractor’s transactions?
	The Contractor will be provided designated DTF DLN ranges to be used solely for payment transactions submitted on the Contractor’s payment portal only.

	9
	2.11
	
	 Are DLN ranges provided specifically by Tax Program?
	Yes. See Exhibit 1-G Sample DLN Ranges.

	10
	2.11
	
	Do you require that all DLN’s in sequential order be accounted for or can there be gaps, e.g. if a transaction does not complete?
	DTF does require that all DLN’s be in sequential order, without gaps. Only completed transactions should be assigned a DLN. See Amended Functional Requirement 2.11.

	11
	3.4
	
	Will files with zero records include a header/trailer?
	Yes.

	12
	2.A.4

Change Management
	85
	The Contractor must provide DTF sixty (60) days prior notification of planned changes to the organization, expansion of services to other clients, and/or hardware and software modifications that either directly or indirectly impact required services

Can the Department please clarify what is meant by changes to the organization? What are examples of changes to the organization?
	Examples of organizational changes are:

· Software Enhancements/Changes;
· Executive Management Changes; and
· Mergers and acquisitions.

	13
	2.A.6

Procedures Documentation
	85
	The Contractor must develop, implement, maintain and document all procedures in accordance with the agreed upon requirements.  Complete and accurate documentation must be maintained throughout the engagement.

Can the Department please provide specific examples of the expected documents and procedures they require?
	Examples of documentation DTF is requesting be maintained and provided for all procedures includes, but is not limited to:

· Design Specification Documents;
· Flow charts of Web & IVR process;
· IVR Scripts;
· Customer Service Representative Scripts & Training Materials;
· DLN Assignment Manual; and
· Contractor Payment Portal User Guide of Administrative Functions for delegated DTF representatives.

	14
	4B

Accuracy and Completeness
	87
	All payment transaction and deposits must be accurate, complete and processed in accordance with the requirements.

Can the Department please provide multiple examples of what is meant by “inaccurate and incomplete” transactions? We are trying to understand examples where these liquidated damages would apply.
	This standard would apply in any case where a Contractor error in processing a payment transaction, caused the payment to be processed incorrectly.  Examples include, but are not limited to, the following:
· Processed for the wrong dollar amount;
· Wrong DLN sequence;
· Wrong taxpayer; and
· Blank required field.


	15
	F.
Insurance Requirements
	90
	See our Appendix A to this document.

The bidder has standard insurance policies designed to protect ourselves and all clients globally. As indicated in the process response to question 47 in Amendment 2 –we submit and seek the agreement of DTF to our proposed changes to the technical Insurance requirements of Section F. These are attached as Appendix A of this document which reflects our standard insurance agreements. 

Also again as indicated in the answer, we will also supply applicable edits to the Insurance requirements of the draft contract as Extraneous Terms in the bid proposal to be negotiated upon contract award. (See also our question below)
	The previous response to question 47 has been withdrawn.  The Department will not negotiate the Insurance Requirements prior to bid award.  Proposed extraneous terms to the Preliminary Contract can be submitted with the bid and must not materially alter the mandatory requirements in Section III. F. Insurance Requirements, as amended.  Please see Amendment 4.

	16
	F.
Insurance Requirements
	90
	Amendment 2 also changed the scoring to include pass/fail for a bidder’s response  to F – Insurance Requirements. 

As the requirements in section F pages 91-thru 93 are identical to Standard Contract Article XXIV. Insurance Requirements on page 307 of the draft contract, for which we can propose changes/ edits  in our bid – to what criteria does the DTF plan to determine a pass or fail?
	Pass/Fail means the Bidder must meet the response requirement in the RFP, which with respect to the Insurance Requirements means that the Bidder must affirm understanding of, and agree to comply with, the Insurance Requirements in Section III.F.  See also response to question 15.

	17
	Amendment 2

Q and A
	
	Response to question 45

Can the Department please confirm that no paper confirmations need to be mailed to a tax payer for any tax types?
	Confirmed. Paper Payment Confirmations will not be mailed to the Taxpayer for any tax type.

	18
	H.
Contract Signing and Contract Term and

19.
Proposed Extraneous Terms
	9
	With the exception of Banking Services Agreements which will be subject to negotiation, the Department will not sign any Contractor supplied contract documents.  As such, if there are specific terms to be included in the final Contract, they must be submitted in response to Section V.B.19. – Proposed Extraneous Terms

vs.

Extraneous term(s) submitted on standard, pre-printed forms (including but not limited to: product literature, order forms, license agreements, contracts or other documents), whether or not deemed “material”, which are attached or referenced with submissions which do not meet the above requirements will not be considered part of the bid or resulting contract, but rather will be deemed to have been included for informational or promotional purposed only.

Because of the apparent conflict between the two requirements - Can the Department please confirm that the bidder can supply its applicable standard banking services agreements with the RFP response and that they will be considered part of the bid?
	Vendor-supplied standard banking and/or service agreement(s) are to be submitted with the bid for informational purposes. They will not be incorporated into the base Contract.  If a bidder wishes the State to consider any portion of their standard banking services agreements, they should present those portion(s) as an extraneous term(s) pursuant to Section V.B.19. of the RFP.

	19
	E.
Performance Standards, Liquidated Damages and Reimbursements
Alternative Language
	62
	Performance Standards, Liquidated Damages and Reimbursements represent the Department’s preferred standards.  The Bidder, however, may propose alternative language.  Such alternative language will be scored utilizing a scaled rating whereby an affirmation of the Department’s standard receives the highest rating and the maximum deviation, from a standard of liquidated damage receives the lowest rating.

Can the Department please confirm that a bidder shall submit its proposed alternative language within the response to Volume 1, Tab 7 Section III E?
	Alternative Language to the Performance Standards should be included in Volume 1, tab 7, Section III. E.

	20
	F.
Insurance Requirements

C.
Liquidated Damages
	93
	The Contractor will be liable for liquidated damages as a result of any virus or information security breach without limitation for the cost of any forensic investigation,  replacement or restoration required due to any virus, information security  breach or any other incident compromising the availability, privacy, security, integrity or usability of any Department and/or taxpayer data including, but not limited to, costs to: remediate the breach, offer credit monitoring services and/or handle public communications concerning the incident and response.

Can the Department please clarify why this liquidated damages clause is included within the Section F Insurance Requirements as it appears to be related to security rather than Insurance?

This clause is also repeated in the draft contract - so can the Department also please confirm that any proposed changes to this clause should be included within our response in Volume 2.- Proposed Extraneous Terms?
	See Amendment 3 and Amendment 4.  This language has been modified.

	21
	Amendment 2 

Response to question 5
	1
	No.  The bid proposal must be in the RFP format.

Can the Department provide further clarifications of its expectations here? Would the proposed format attached as Appendix B meet your requirements?

We have a concern that including large amounts of text plus graphics in half page tables would increase the size of the response significantly.
	The Bidder may provide the response in a broken table as provided in the example in Appendix B.

	22
	
	
	Would the State consider allowing one of the current credit card service provider to continue processing as an alternative taxpayer option to the awarded vendor?  In other words, the State has three providers today that may have exclusive marketing partners to promote the services.   In order to facilitate as many electronic payments with a continuous competitive pricing structure, it would be advantages for the State to have more than one (1) credit card provider.


	No. All credit card services will be provided by the awarded Contractor.

	23
	Exhibit 1-B:
	  Pg 131,
	Is the expectation that each tax agency will use a standard Web/IVR front-end channel interface configuration or will there be unique customization by agency?
	The Contractor will be providing Web/IVR payment processing for one agency (DTF) that will process payments for multiple tax programs using a standard Web/IVR front-end channel, while allowing for unique customization by tax program.

	24
	2.4
	Pg 39
	Please describe the requested key structure in more detail.
	Please see answer to Question 27 from Answers to Round 1 of Q&As.

	25
	Attachment 16
	368
	Are convenience fees allowed for ACH transactions?
	No.

	26
	Attachment 16
	368
	Who is DTS's current provider? What are the current contractual all-in transaction fees being charged to the State?
	Please refer to Question 11 and Question 24. from Answers to Round 1 of Q&As.  The all-in transaction fee information is considered proprietary.

	27
	
	333
	Fee Change Procedures: Are fee change procedures eligible for significant changes to the mix of credit card types and dollar values?
	The Fee Change Procedures cannot be changed.

	28
	
	82
	2A: Standards 2A1 to 2A5 contain the language  "reimbursement to the Department and/or taxpayer for any expenses, loss of revenue , etc for failure to meet the standard" in addition to a defined penalty for each violation."   We understand that DTF has indicated that it will not accept any alternative language to this General Controls Standards.  We have a question relative to agreeing on definitions of terms used in liquidated damage and reimbursement section.  
For example can we agree that the term "loss" for DTF would be the potential loss of earnings on the funds that are delayed in getting to DTF account? 
Can we put some definition around what is a reasonable "expense" for taxpayer and DTF for the violations in scope ?
	No.
No.

	29
	Page 366, Attachment 14


	
	To the best knowledge of the authorized officer submitting this proposal, without independent inquiry, the authorized officer advises that she is not aware of any conflicts of interest that would disqualify Bank of America, N.A. (“BANA”) from performing the requested banking services.  However, BANA is an indirect, wholly-owned subsidiary of Bank of America Corporation (the “Corporation”), which is a large and diversified, publicly-traded institution. The Corporation and its subsidiaries, including BANA, had nearly 272,000 full time equivalent employees as of December 31, 2012, and is a global franchise, serving customers and clients around the world with operations in all 50 U.S. states, the District of Columbia, and more than 40 foreign countries.  Accordingly, it is not reasonably feasible to perform definitive due diligence, extending back five years in time, and spanning the full panoply of all of BANA’s and its related entities’ departments, employees, and principals, in order to list all relationships as requested and/or to identify any relationships posing an existing or potential conflict of interest. However, it is BANA’s intent that there be  no conflict of interest with respect to the subject matter of the RFP, and BANA notes that all employees of the Corporation and its affiliates and subsidiaries, including BANA, are subject to a written Code of Ethics, which each employee is required to read and acknowledge in writing on an annual basis, that requires all employees to disclose any outside activities and relationships that may pose a conflict of interest to the Corporation or its affiliates and subsidiaries, and its business activities.
	Execution of these forms is mandatory.  Attachment 14 has been amended.  Please see Amendment 5.

	30
	Page 341, 10. Records
	
	Bank of America would like to clarify that our records are generally maintained for a rolling period of seven (7) years from the date of a transaction. Given this is a Bank wide protocol; we are unable to agree to maintain records based upon the date of termination, or final payment, in regard to a particular client contract or agreement.  Is this acceptable to DTF?
	Seven years from the date of a transaction will meet the requirements of Appendix A of the RFP (page 341, 10. Records).

	31
	Page 107, 8. Permission to Investigate
	
	In the event that the Department determines it necessary to investigate evidence relative to a possible or actual 1) crime or 2) breach of confidentiality or security, Contractor and its subcontractors shall cooperate fully with the Department to the extent permitted by law to investigate and identify the responsible individuals.  Contractor and its subcontractors shall, to the extent permitted by law, make their employees and all relevant records, including personnel records and employee photographs, available to Department investigators upon request by the Department’s Office of Risk Management.  The Department may interview Contractor’s employees and/or agents in connection with an investigation during normal business hours.

Can the bank recommend the following language to be considered? 
In accordance with the bank’s job application process and applicant acknowledgment form, employment with the bank is contingent upon a satisfactory background check, including a criminal history background check. Since 2005, the bank's practice has been to fingerprint applicants and send the prints to the FBI to identify any criminal convictions.  Prior to 2006, the bank's practice was to conduct a courthouse check which collects 10 years worth of history in the applicant's counties or residence and employment for the past 10 years.  In accordance with the bank's practice, the bank does not hire applicants with convictions for FDIC regulated offenses (such as robbery, forgery, credit card fraud, and money laundering), felony crimes of violence, felony convictions, any crimes against children, and the illegal manufacture, sale, distribution of or trafficking in controlled substances, among other crimes.  In addition, as part of the bank’s background check process, the bank conducts an employment history check, verifies an applicant’s education history.  As stated above, the bank conducts background checks as part of the hiring process.  The bank generally does not perform background checks on current associates.  Therefore, it is possible that a bank associate who performs work on the contract has not had a background check conducted in the past year if he or she has been employed by the bank for more than a year. In addition, the bank generally does not permit outside entities to view the results on its associates.  The bank also reserves the right to determine which of its associate will perform work on the contract.  If there are any concerns about the criminal background of an associate working on the contract or the suitability of an associate to work on the contract, please direct all inquiries to the Senior Client Manager.  
The bank will handle each inquiry on a case by case basis. Is this acceptable to DTF?
	No.
No.  This will not meet the requirement.

	32
	Page 90, F. Insurance Requirements
	
	The Bank reserves the right to obtain all insurance required under this contract through a program of self-insurance.

F. Insurance Requirements


The Bank will furnish certificates of insurance evidencing the coverage referenced herein.

All of the Bank’s insurers have an A.M. Best rating of A- Class VII or better.

The Bank’s insurance policies are primary and non contributory to the New York Dept. of Tax and Finance insurance policies only as it relates to the bank’s own negligence arising out of the bank’s performance of services and rights and obligations under this agreement.   

Due to the volume of the bank’s business and the structure of its corporate policies, the Bank cannot commit to providing thirty (30) days written notice upon termination or modification of coverage.  Failure to provide notice of cancellation of coverage shall impose no obligation or liability of any kind upon the Bank’s, its agents or representatives.

In the event Bank of America self-insures any or all of the coverages required herein, Bank of America will furnish a letter of self-insurance.  Please note that financial information can be found on Bank of America’s website.

The Bank’s line of business requiring subcontractors is responsible for ensuring all subcontractors carry coverage which is compliant with the requirements of this contract.

The Bank cannot guarantee the requested insurance is maintained throughout the term of the contract, but intends to continue to purchase as long as it is commercially available and economically attractive.

The Bank will furnish a certificate of insurance at renewal.

A. Specific Coverage and Limits.

1. Commercial General Liability:  Bank of America maintains Commercial General Liability coverage including Bodily Injury & Property Damage, Personal & Advertising Injury, Products & Completed Operations, and Contractual Liability with limits of $2,000,000 per occurrence/$2,000,000 aggregate.

The Bank’s insurance includes its own Cross Liability clause.

2. Due to the size of the Bank, we cannot provide individual additional insured endorsements or riders.  The Certificate of Insurance will evidence the New York Dept of Tax and Finance as additional insured as required by written contract.

3. The Bank maintains a Cyber Liability policy which protects the bank from the following causes.

Failure to protect confidential information from disclosure by the Bank or entity to whom the Bank has entrusted the confidential information including:

Failure of the Bank’s computer system security to prevent a computer attack;

Crisis management (including privacy notification expenses); or  Cyber-extortion

The Bank can comply with the limits requested for Cyber Liability.

The Bank’s insurance policies are written annually, thus eliminating the need to obtain a three year (3) extended reporting provision to include run-off coverage or retroactive dates.  Although it is the Bank’s intent to renew all coverages as required in this contract, the Bank reserves the right to self insure any lines of coverage.

4. Technology Professional Liability – is not applicable 

5. Workers’ Compensation:  The Bank maintains Workers’ Compensation coverage in compliance with all statutory requirements.

6. Automobile Liability:  The Bank maintains Automobile Liability insurance with a limit of $2,000,000 per accident.

Subrogation will be waived except with respect to Workers’ Compensation insurance.
	The previous response to question 47 of round 1 questions has been withdrawn. 

The Department will not negotiate the Insurance Requirements prior to bid award.  Proposed extraneous terms to the Preliminary Contract can be submitted with the bid and must not materially alter the mandatory requirements in Section III. F. Insurance Requirements, as amended.  Please see Amendment 4.  See also response to question 16.

	33
	Page 9, Section H. Contract Signing and Contract Term
	
	The RFP states, “The Department will award one Contract to the successful Bidder.”

In cases where the primary bidder is submitting a bid with a related entity and said related entity requires its own contract, is the Department willing to sign two contracts?


	No.

	34
	Page 9, Section H. Contract Signing and Contract Term
	
	Can the Contractor consist of more than one signing party? (e.g., Service Provider A and Service Provider B are collectively the “Contractor”)? 


	No.

	35
	Page 19, Section C. Program Overview.
	
	For credit cards, does the Department store any credit card information, or is it only stored by your current vendor/gateway?


	All credit card information is stored by the current vendor.

	36
	Page 56, Requirement 5.6.
	
	For credit card, does the Department respond to and manage retrieval and chargeback inquiries, or does your vendor? 
Does the Department absorb chargebacks, or does the vendor?
 If the Department manages chargebacks, is it an online electronic process, or do you handle chargebacks through paper hard copy?
	Currently DTF receives chargeback inquiries from each individual vendor through paper hard copy.

The Department absorbs the chargeback on the payment portion.
The Vendor absorbs the convenience fee.

The current process is paper.

	37
	Page 82-89, Section E. Performance Standards, Liquidated Damages, and Reimbursements.
	
	The bidder has the following requests concerning this section:

a. 2.A.4 Change Management. Please confirm that this requirement only applies to changes planned by the bidder, and not to emergency changes or changes required by a Card Association or Network for which the bidder had less than 60 days’ notice to implement.


	This standard applies to “planned” changes.  For emergency changes or changes required by a Card Association or Network, the Bidder must notify DTF as soon as they become aware of the change or emergency.

	38
	Page 82-89, E. Performance Standards
	
	Will termination rights be accepted in lieu of financial penalties for SLAs?
	No.

	39
	Page 82-89, E. Performance Standards
	
	If financial penalties are kept in place, are the penalties waived during the cure period, and is the cure period negotiable?
	The decision to provide a cure period (or not) is within the Department’s sole discretion.  Liquidated damages can be assessed by the Department retroactive to the date of a failure to meet any performance standard.

	40
	Page 82-89, E. Performance Standards
	
	If the State agrees to multiple agreements under one program manager, will they allow the separate parties to severally liable for the penalties?
	Per the RFP, there will be only one Contractor, who is responsible for all aspects of performance under the Contract, even if the Contractor uses Subcontractor(s).  

	41
	Page 82-89, E. Performance Standards
	
	Will the State allow penalties from Card Organizations in the case of breaches supersede the penalties in section 2. General Controls?
	No.

	42
	Page 82-89, E. Performance Standards. Under 2.A.4
	
	Can DTF remove “changes to the organization”?
	No.  See also response to question 12.

	43
	Page 82-89, E. Performance Standards. Under 2.A.4
	
	Can DTF remove “or indirectly”? If not, please define indirect impact?
	No. Indirect impact would be all those changes that are not specific to this program but either support or affect the program   tangentially. 

	44
	Page 82-89, E. Performance Standards. Under 3.A.1
	
	The bidder is audited by a third party and receives an annual SSAE-16 report. Would this report satisfy this requirement? If not, what must be provided to satisfy an audit or review?
	The third party audit could be useful in meeting all or part of this requirement. However no pre approval will be given that the third party audit meets the requirements.  The audit criteria will be determined at the time of the audit.

	45
	Page 90, Section F. Insurance Requirements
	
	The bidder’s insurance company does not provide notice of cancellation, but the bidder can provide such notice to DTF. Is this acceptable?
	Please see Amendment 4 and response to question 15 and question 16.

	46
	Page 90, Section F. Insurance Requirements
	
	Our Cyber Liability coverage is part of our Professional Liability policy. Please confirm that this is acceptable.
	Please see Amendment 4 and response to question 15 and question 16.

	47
	Page 91, Section F. Insurance Requirements, A.2
	
	The bidder can only include DTF as “additional insured” on our General Liability and Auto Liability policies. Is this acceptable?
	Please see Amendment 4 and response to question 15 and question 16.

	48
	Page 92, Section F. Insurance Requirements, B.
	
	The bidder needs exclusion of our Professional Liability policy from this provision. Is this acceptable?
	Please see Amendment 4 and response to question 15 and question 16.

	49
	Page 341, Appendix A. Clause 1
	
	The Executory Clause states that the State will not be liable for any amounts beyond what is appropriated.   In general, any fines, fees, penalties, etc. associated with a data compromise are assessed against the processor, regardless of whether the processor was the likely source of the data compromise.  However, in most cases, the Card Organizations have determined that the likely source of the data compromise is the merchant.  Therefore, the merchant provider looks to the merchant for reimbursement.  

Will  DTF agree to be liable for any damages or losses BAMS suffers due to the State’s breach of the agreement, gross negligence or willful misconduct (e.g. in the event of a data breach for which the Card Organization have determined that the State is the source)? We believe our request is in line with the indemnification language in the proposed contract on page 294 of the RFP, Article XXII. Indemnification and Damages, A. Indemnification
	No.

	50
	Page 341, Appendix A. Clause 1
	
	If DTF is liable for amounts which exceed appropriations, will DTF agree to seek special appropriations to pay for any outstanding liabilities?
	NYS will pay all accurate and appropriate invoices per the terms of the Contract. 

	51
	Page 341, Appendix A, Clause 2
	
	The Non-Assignment Clause requires that we obtain consent if we want to assign the contract. We usually reserve the right to assign to successor or affiliate entities.

Will DTF agree to allow us to assign the agreement to any successor or affiliate entity where the assignment is due to a reorganization, merger or consolidation of the Contractor’s business entity or enterprise, without prior approval?  
	No.

	52
	Page 341, Appendix A, Clause 2
	
	Each processor is required to have a sponsor bank under the Card Organization Rules. Currently, the sponsor bank is BANA. Would you agree to a change in sponsorship without approval?
	No.

	53
	Page 341, Appendix A, Clause 2
	
	Will DTF allow us to assign to another Visa or MasterCard acquirer?
	No.

	54
	Page 96, Requirement 2.3. Credit Card Fee.
	
	Can the Department define “Fully Loaded Transaction Fee?” Is this a single rate per credit card transaction that is charged to the Department and covers all credit card fees, such as interchange?
	It is each Bidder’s responsibility to develop its own pricing strategy.  A Bidder can propose fees as they deem appropriate to the Department and/or the Cardholder.  Fully loaded means all applicable fees, such as interchange, must be included in the pricing as set forth in the bid proposal on Attachment 16, Financial Response Form lines 2.3 and 6.0.

	55
	Page 97, Requirement 6.0. Credit Card Convenience Fee.
	
	The bidder is asked to provide a “fully loaded fee” and a “convenience fee” for credit cards. 
Which tax types are assessed a convenience fee on the taxpayer versus the Department picking up the fully loaded fee? 


	See response to question 11 in Round 1 Questions and response to question 54 above.

	56
	Page 130, Exhibit 1-A, DTF Electronic Payments Tax Programs Breakdown.
	
	For the 2012 Credit Card Payments, can the Department provide a breakdown as follows:

a. Number of transactions and volume for Residential vs. Commercial tax payments?

b. Number of transactions and volume for one-time payments vs. recurring payments? If there are recurring payments, are these payments made monthly, annually, or other?

c. Does this volume include PINless Debit (also known as signature debit) transactions? Does the Department accept PINless Debit? 


	A. DTF does not have this information.
B. DTF does not have this information.
C. DTF does not currently process PINless Debit.

	57
	Pages 55, 57, 60 and 61; III. Technical Requirements, A. Functional Requirements, 5.4, 6.4, 7.2, and 7.3
	
	Various

Would DTF consider ad hoc reporting to be a phased in functionality to be prioritized in conjunction with DTF?
	Yes.

	58
	Page 39; III. Technical Requirements, A. Functional Requirements, Section II, 2.3
	
	The Contractor must provide taxpayer access to web applications 24 hours a day, seven days a week, 365 days a year, with the exception of agreed upon maintenance windows that are consistent with DTF's maintenance windows.  In addition, Contractor shall provide notification to DTF 48 hours prior to any unexpected maintenance to the extent reasonably practicable, but in no event less than 1 hour prior to taking the system down for unexpected maintenance.

DTF Maintenance Windows:

-Monday through Saturday – 4am – 6 am ET

-Sunday - 9 pm – 10 pm ET

Would DTF consider Fiserv standard maintenance widows?
	Please see answer to question 108 from Answers to Round 1 of Questions and Answers.

	59
	Page 20; I. Introduction; Part C
	
	Credit Card Payments made through stand alone web application or IVR

The taxpayer will enter the required data and credit card information to allow association to payment records either through a link to the Contractor’s site or through an IVR application.  The Contractor will hold the data until the transaction has been settled (1-3 days).    Upon settlement, the Contractor will send a file to the Department.

Will the Department accept next business day funding from the bidder if the card payments are authorized immediately and funds held thereby significantly minimizing exceptions?
	Yes.

	60
	General Question
	
	In responding to the requirements, may the bidder propose alternative methods to reach the same or similar objectives?
	Yes, as long as the alternative method meets the same objective. However the Bidder must propose a single solution for each requirement.

	61
	General Question
	
	Please clarify if the Department expects that the bidder and any subcontractor should each complete the forms included (Attachment 2-15) or if only the contractor/primary bidder should complete?
	For purposes of the RFP Response, the Subcontractor will not be required to complete Attachments 2-15.  The Department reserves the right to require completion of these forms, or other applicable documents, from a Subcontractor after Contract award.  For additional information regarding Subcontractors see applicable sections in the RFP, including the Preliminary Contract.

	62
	General Question
	
	Please provide average payment amount by card type and tax program type.
	Information provided in Exhibit 1-S Credit Card Percentages. Please see answer to Question  12 from Answers to Round 1 of Q&As.

	63
	General Question
	
	Would DTF consider a bid which shifts highly customized Phase 1 requirements to later Phases?
	No.

	64
	General Question
	
	Would DTF consider separating the Merchant component of the RFP under a different procurement? 
	No.
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Our proposed changes to Section F Insurance Requirements.



Proposed deletions are indicated in red strikethrough as Text
Proposed additions are indicated as black underline as Text
F. Insurance Requirements

Prior to the commencement of services, the Contractor shall file with The State of New York, Department of Tax and Finance (hereinafter referred to as “DTF”), Certificates of Insurance evidencing compliance with all requirements contained in this Contract.  These policies must be written in accordance with the requirements of the paragraphs below.   Each insurance carrier must be rated at least “A-” Class “VII” in the most recently published Best’s Insurance Report.  If, during the term of the policy, a carrier’s rating falls below “A-” Class “VII”, the insurance must be replaced no later than the renewal date of the policy with an insurer acceptable to the Department and rated at least “A-” Class ”VII” in the most recently published Best’s Insurance Report.
The Department may, at its sole discretion, accept policies of insurance written by a non-authorized carrier(s) when Certificates and/or other policy documentation are accompanied by a completed Excess Lines Association of New York (ELANY) Affidavit.  Nothing herein shall be construed to require the Department to accept insurance placed with a non-authorized carrier under any circumstances. Acceptance and/or approval by DTF does not and shall not be construed to relieve Contractor of any obligations, responsibilities or liabilities under the Contract.

All insurance required by the Contract shall: i) be obtained at the sole cost and expense of the Contractor, ii) be maintained with insurance carriers licensed to do business in New York State, and acceptable to DTF, rated at least “A-” Class ”VII” in the most recently published Best’s Insurance Report, iii) with respect to insurance which names DTF as an additional insured, be primary and non-contributing to any insurance or self-insurance maintained by DTF, iv) with respect to insurance which names DTF as an additional insured, be endorsed to provide that the insurer will endeavor to mail DTF with written notice at least thirty (30) days prior to the cancellation of such policies,  and v) name The People of the State of New York, its officers, agents, and employees as additional insureds thereunder as their interests may appear relative 
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to claims which arise from Contractor’s negligent acts or omissions in connection with the performance of this contract.  The additional insured requirement does not apply to Workers Compensation, Disability or Technology Bankers Professional Liability coverage.

The Contractor shall be solely responsible for the payment of all deductibles and self-insured retentions to which such policies are subject. 

The Contractor shall require that any subcontractors hired, carry insurance with the same limits and provisions provided herein.   

The Contractor shall cause all insurance to be in full force and effect as of the commencement date of this Contract and to remain in full force and effect throughout the term of this Contract and as further required by this Contract.  The Contractor shall not take any action, or omit to take any action that would suspend or invalidate any of the required coverages during the period of time such coverages are required to be in effect.

As soon as reasonably practicable prior to the expiration date or renewal date, the Contractor shall supply DTF updated/replacement Certificates of Insurance., and amendatory endorsements. 

The Contractor, throughout the term of the Contract, or as otherwise required by the Contract, shall obtain and maintain in full force and effect, the following insurances with limits not less than those described below and as required by the terms of the Contract, or as required by law, whichever is greater (limits may be provided through a combination of primary and umbrella/excess policies):

I. Specific Coverage and Limits.  The types of insurance and the minimum policy limits shall be as follows:
1. General Liability.  Commercial General Liability Insurance (CGL) covering the liability of Contractor for bodily injury, property damage, and personal/advertising injury arising from all work and operations under this contract.  Such liability shall be written on the ISO occurrence form CG 00 01, or a substitute form providing equivalent coverages.  The limits under such policy shall not be less than the following: 

· Each Occurrence limit - $1,000,000

· General Aggregate - $2,000,000

· Products/Completed Operations - $2,000,000

· Personal Advertising Injury - $1,000,000

· Damage to Rented Premises - $50,000

· Medical Expense - $5,000
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Coverage shall include, but not be limited to, the following: 

· Premises liability

· Independent contractors

· Blanket contractual liability, including tort liability of another assumed in a contract 

· Defense and/or indemnification obligations

· Cross liability for additional insured’s 

· Products/completed operations 

2. Additional Insured. The Department shall be named as additional insureds thereunder as their interests may appear where applicable relative to claims which arise from Contractor’s negligent acts or omissions in connection with the performance of this contract.  Such liability must be written on the insurer’s blanket Additional Insured – Where Required Under Contract or Agreement form. the ISO occurrence form CG 20 10 11 85, or a substitute form providing equivalent coverages.

3. Cyber (Internet) liability. The Contractor shall maintain Cyber Internet Liability insurance with a limit of not less than $1,000,000.00 for damages arising from theft, destruction or unauthorized use of electronic data, and/or failing to safeguard another party's electronic data, including unauthorized access, viruses, attacks on covered systems, theft, extortion, loss of income due to online business interruption, and the cost of investigating the reason for the interruption.  This coverage is made on a claims-made policy form, so the Contractor shall purchase, at its sole expense, an Extended Discovery Clause for up to three (3) years after the work is completed if the coverage is cancelled or not renewed.
4. Technology Bankers Professional Liability. The Contractor shall maintain Technology Professional Liability (Errors and Omissions) insurance with a limit of not less than $1,000,000.00 for damages arising from computer-related services including, but not limited to, the following:  consulting, data processing, programming, system integration, software development, installation, distribution or maintenance, systems analysis or design, training, staffing or other support services, any electronic equipment, computer hardware or software developed, manufactured, distributed, licensed, marketed or sold.  This errors and omissions insurance shall include coverage for third party claims and losses including with respect to network risks (such as data breaches, transmission of virus/malicious code; unauthorized access or criminal use of third party, ID/data theft) and invasion 
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of privacy regardless of the type of media involved in the loss of private information (such as computers, paper files and records, or voice recorded tapes), covering collection, use, access, etc. of personally identifiable information, direct liability, as well as contractual liability for violation of privacy policy, civil suits and sublimit for regulatory defense/indemnity for payment of fines and penalties. This coverage is made on a claims-made policy form, so the Contractor shall purchase, at its sole expense, an Extended Discovery Clause for up to three (3) years after the work is completed if the coverage is cancelled or not renewed. Bankers Professional Liability (Errors and Omissions) insurance with a limit of not less than $1,000,000 per wrongful act and aggregate covering loss arising from claims alleging wrongful acts, errors and omissions committed by the Contractor and its employees in the performance of professional services.
5. Workers Compensation.  For work to be performed in NYS, Contractor shall provide and maintain coverage during the life of the Contract for the benefit of such employees of Contractor that are required to be covered by the NYS Workers Compensation Law.

6. Disability Benefits.  For work to be performed in NYS, Contractor shall provide and maintain coverage during the life of the Contract for the benefit of such employees of Contractor that are required to be covered by the NYS Disability Benefits Law.  Any waiver of this requirement must be approved by the Department and will only be granted in unique or unusual circumstances.

7. Comprehensive Business Automobile Liability.  Insurance with a limit of not less than $1,000,000 each accident.  Such insurance shall cover liability arising out of any automobile including owned, leased, hired, and non-owned automobiles used by the Contractor in the performance of services under this contract.

I. Waiver of Subrogation.  Contractor shall cause to be included in each of its policies insuring against loss, damage or destruction by fire or other insured casualty, excluding Cyber Liability, a waiver of the insurer’s right of subrogation against DTF, or, if such waiver is unobtainable, (i) an express agreement that such policy shall not be invalidated if Contractor waives or has waived before the casualty, the right of recovery against DTF, or (ii) any other form of permission for the release of DTF.
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C. Liquidated Damages

The Contractor will be liable for liquidated damages as a result of any virus or information security breach without limitation for the cost of any forensic investigation,  replacement or restoration required due to any virus, information security  breach or any other 
incident compromising the availability, privacy, security, integrity or usability of any Department and/or taxpayer data including, but not limited to, costs to: remediate the breach, offer credit monitoring services and/or handle public communications concerning the incident and response.
Note:  The Department will negotiate the Liquidated Damages section of the Insurance Requirements.

Response Requirement

The Bidder must affirm understanding of, and agreement to comply with, the Insurance Requirements.
	New York State Department of Taxation and Finance
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Our proposed response format.

	1.2
	The Contractor must be willing to develop, extend or expand payment methods to accommodate other DTF programs not currently identified.  (e.g. Legislative changes, fields on applications and screens may require change in an acceptable amount of time determined by DTF).
	Affirm understanding of, and agreement to comply with, this requirement.  Describe how your architecture, systems and program development staff will work to meet this requirement.  


Etc. 
Bidder RESPONSE goes here, underneath a broken up table?
	#
	Functional Requirement
	Required Response

	
	apply program specific business rules for each tax program and payment method on an individual transaction basis, based on the data received from DTF's secure message. 

Contractor must retain/maintain supporting data required to enforce business rules (i.e. reference tables).
	

	2.9
	In the instances where the taxpayer is required to file a return and make a payment, the Contractor must have the ability to process payments using a pre-assigned unique DTF DLN number and keep that assigned DLN number associated to the payment.
	Affirm understanding of, and agreement to comply with, this requirement.  Describe how you will meet this requirement.

	2.10
	For payment transactions that DTF links directly to the Contractor's web services, the Contractor must code and apply program specific business rules (e.g. the ability to warehouse payments) for each tax program and payment method on an individual transaction basis.  See Exhibit 1-Q, Sample Program Specific Business Rules.
	Affirm understanding of, and agreement to comply with, this requirement.   Describe how you will meet this requirement.

	2.11
	For payment transactions that DTF links directly to the Contractor's web services and do not have a pre-assigned DLN number, the Contractor must assign a unique DTF provided alpha-numeric DLN number to each successfully completed transaction. The Contractor must be willing and able to accommodate DTF’s existing DLN assignment format and range. See Exhibit 1-G, Sample DLN Ranges. The Contractor must not consider any transaction complete until successful 
data capture of all required fields within the online application. Incomplete transactions must be retained, however they must not appear on any outputs (e.g., screens, reports or data files) provided to DTF. 

The assigned DLN numbers for cancelled payments must be stored and available for inquiry for the duration of the contract.

Note:  Incomplete transactions are not to be assigned a DTF DLN transaction number. However, records of such attempts are to be maintained for trend analysis review.
	Affirm understanding of, and agreement to comply with, this requirement.   Describe how you will meet this requirement. 

	2.12
	 The Contractor must provide a web service call to DTF’s Message Center whenever a taxpayer submits a transaction on the Contractor’s site and a confirmation number is provided to the taxpayer in connection with any payment transaction including but not limited to initiating/cancelling a payment(s).
	Affirm understanding of, and agreement to comply with, this requirement.  Describe how you will meet this requirement.

	2.13
	The Contractor must provide taxpayers a complete view of payment transaction history on its site, based on the taxpayer’s delegation access that is passed in the SAML to the Contractor during the session transfer. 
	Affirm understanding of, and agreement to comply with, this requirement.  Describe how you will meet this requirement.

	2.14
	The Contractor must provide payment history for all payment types through a web service call that supports multiple key retrievals (e.g., taxpayer ID number, tax type, DLN) for taxpayer inquiry. The web service call will integrate payment history information into the Department's Account Summary.  Data required for each 
	Affirm understanding of, and agreement to comply with, this requirement.  Describe how you will meet this requirement.


Attachment 14 – Public Officers Law – Post Employment Requirements

By signing below and submitting a proposal to this RFP the person signing certifies, for and on behalf of the Bidder, that to the best of his/her knowledge or belief: 

A. He/she has read and understands the provisions applicable to post-employment restrictions affecting former State officers and employees, available using the link* below: 

i. Public Officers Law § 73(8)(a)(i), (the two-year bar); and 

ii. Public Officers Law § 73(8)(a)(ii), (the life-time bar); 

B. Submission of this proposal does not violate either provision; 

C. He/she is familiar with, or has made diligent inquiry of, the Proposer's relevant employees, and its agents; 

D. No violation shall occur by entering into a contract or in performance of the contractual services; 

E. This certification is material to the proposal; and 

F. He/she understands that the Department intends to rely on this certification. 

The Proposer shall fully disclose to the Department, within its proposal and on a continuing basis, any circumstances that could affect this certification or it’s the Proposer’s ability to comply with the cited laws. Proposers shall address any questions concerning  §73(8) of the Public Officers Law these provisions to: 

The New York State Joint Commission on Public Ethics 
540 Broadway 
Albany, NY 12207 
Telephone #: (518) 408-3976 

By (signature):  ___________________________________________________________

Name (please print):   ______________________________________________________

Title (please print):    _______________________________________________________

Date:                       _____________________________________

*Click on this link: Public Officers Law, Article 4. When the page opens, click on “Laws of New York”. On the next page, select “PBO Public Officers”. When this page opens, select “Article 4 – (60 - 79) POWERS AND DUTIES OF PUBLIC OFFICERS” and choose Sections 73 (8-a)(i) and 73 (8-a)(ii).
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		 An amount field in the return filing. Contains "claimed" and "computed" attributes of "amount" type
	
	 
		 
			 A decimal field with two fraction digits only. There are no bounds and allow both negative and positive numbers
		
		 
			 
			 
			 
			 
		
	
	 
		 
			 An amount field that allow only positive decimals including 0
		
		 
			 
		
	
	 
		 
			 Four digit year field whose range is from 1900 to nnnn.
		
		 
	
	 
		 
			 Processing Year -- refers to the current year of processing
		
		 
	
	 
		 
			 
			 
			 
		
	
	 
		 
			 
				A percent fraction field that allows 6 fraction digits with 0 and
				99.999999 as its bounds. e.g. 200% is represented as 2.000000
			
		
		 
			 
			 
			 
		
	
	 
		 
			 A positive integer with max of 35
		
		 
			 
		
	
	 
		 
			 A postive integer with a max of 75
		
		 
			 
		
	
	 
		 
	
	 
		 
			 Generic 1 character field
		
		 
			 
		
	
	 
		 
			 Stat Type indicator to indicate whether it is a Count or Amount as required by DEM Stats
		
		 
			 
			 
			 
		
	
	 
		 
			 An switch indicator that can have value of 0, 1 or 2
		
		 
			 
		
	
	 
		 
			 An indicator that can have a numeric value from 1 to 3
		
		 
			 
		
	
	 
		 
			 An indicator that can have a numeric value from 1 to 2
		
		 
			 
		
	
	 
		 
			 Indicator field with claimed and computed attributes
		
		 
		 
		 
		 
	
	 
		 
			 Indicator field with claimed and computed attributes
		
		 
		 
		 
		 
	
	 
		 
			 Indicator field with claimed and computed attributes
		
		 
		 
		 
		 
	
	 
		 
			 Indicator field with claimed and computed attributes
		
		 
		 
		 
		 
	
	 
		 
			 Indicator field with claimed and computed attributes
		
		 
		 
		 
		 
	
	 
		 
			 Indicator field with claimed and computed attributes
		
		 
		 
		 
		 
	
	 
		 
			 An indicator that can have a numeric value from 0 to 4
		
		 
			 
		
	
	 
		 
			 An indicator that can have a numeric value from 1 to 4
		
		 
			 
		
	
	 
		 
			 Indicator field with claimed and computed attributes
		
		 
		 
		 
		 
	
	 
		 
			 An indicator that can have a numeric value from 0 to 2
		
		 
			 
		
	
	 
		 
			 An indicator that can have a numeric value from 0 to 9
		
		 
			 
		
	
	 
		 
			 An indicator that can have a numeric value from 0 to 3
		
		 
			 
		
	
	 
		 
			 Indicator field with claimed and computed attributes
		
		 
		 
		 
		 
	
	 
		 
			 A return field of "amount" type having both claimed and computed attributes
		
		 
		 
		 
		 
	
	 
		 
			 A return field of "positiveAmount" type having both claimed and computed attributes
		
		 
		 
		 
		 
	
	 
		 
		 
		 
		 
		 
		 
		 
		 
		 
		 
		 
		 
		 
		 
	
	 
		 
		 
		 
		 
	
	 
		 
		 
		 
		 
	
	 
		 
		 
		 
		 
	
	 
		 
		 
		 
		 
		 
		 
		 
	
	 
		 
		 
		 
		 
	
	 
		 
		 
		 
		 
	
	 
		 
		 
		 
		 
	
	 
		 
			 Positive Integer with attributes
		
		 
		 
		 
		 
	
	 
		 
			 An indicator that can have a numeric value from 1 to 5
		
		 
			 
		
	
	 
		 
			 Indicator field with claimed and computed attributes
		
		 
		 
		 
		 
	
	 
		 
			 An indicator that can have a numeric value from 0 to 5
		
		 
			 
		
	
	 
		 
			 indicatorType05 field with claimed and computed attributes
		
		 
		 
		 
		 
	
	 
		 
		 
		 
		 
	
	 
		 
			 Field with decimal positions that is neither an Amount nor a Percent
		
		 
		 
		 
		 
	
	 
		 
			 Timestamp data type with flexible pattern t osupport ISO and non-ISO
		
		 
		 
		 
		 
	
	 
		 
			 String with 5 digits
		
		 
			 
		
	
	 
		 
			 String with 5 digits with claimed and computed attributes
		
		 
		 
		 
		 
	
	 
		 
			 Type for External TP ID
		
		 
			 
		
	
	 
		 
			 External TP ID type with claimed and computed attributes
		
		 
		 
		 
		 
	
	 
		 
			 State Code
		
		 
			 
			 
		
	
	 
		 
			 State type with claimed and computed attributes
		
		 
		 
		 
		 
	
	 
		 
			 Non Negative Amount
		
		 
			 
			 
		
	
	 
		 
			 Non Negative Amount with claimed and computed attributes
		
		 
		 
		 
		 
	
	 
		 
			 String with alphabets and hyphens
		
		 
			 
		
	
	 
		 
			 String with alphabets and hyphens
		
		 
		 
		 
		 
	
	 
		 
			 String with alphabets only
		
		 
			 
		
	
	 
		 
			 String with alphabets only
		
		 
		 
		 
		 
	
	 
		 
			 String with alphabets and digits
		
		 
			 
		
	
	 
		 
			 String with alphabets and digits
		
		 
		 
		 
		 
	
	 
		 
			 Address Line format
		
		 
			 
			 
		
	
	 
		 
			 Address Line format
		
		 
		 
		 
		 
	
	 
		 
			 Number with 9 digits
		
		 
			 
		
	
	 
		 
			 Number with 9 digits
		
		 
		 
		 
		 
	
	 
		 
			 Alphanumeric data delimited with optional hyphens
		
		 
			 
		
	
	 
		 
			 Alphanumeric data delimited with optional hyphens
		
		 
		 
		 
		 
	
	 
		 
			 Number with 6 digits
		
		 
			 
		
	
	 
		 
			 Number with 6 digits
		
		 
		 
		 
		 
	
	 
		 
			 Number with 11 digits
		
		 
			 
		
	
	 
		 
			 Number with 11 digits
		
		 
		 
		 
		 
	
	 
		 
			 Alphanumeric data item with 5 characters
		
		 
			 
			 
			 
		
	
	 
		 
			 Alphanumeric data item with 5 characters
		
		 
		 
		 
		 
	
	 
		 
			 Number with 3 digits
		
		 
			 
		
	
	 
		 
			 Number with 3 digits
		
		 
		 
		 
		 
	
	 
		 
			 MMCCYY Date format
		
		 
			 
		
	
	 
		 
			 MMCCYY Date format
		
		 
		 
		 
		 
	
	 
		 
			 Country Code
		
		 
			 
		
	
	 
		 
			 MMCCYY Date format
		
		 
		 
		 
		 
	
	 
		 
			 Number with 7 digits
		
		 
			 
		
	
	 
		 
			 Number with 7 digits
		
		 
		 
		 
		 
	
	 
		 
			 Data Type for Bank Routing Number (ABA#)
		
		 
			 
		
	
	 
		 
			 Data Type for Bank Routing Number (ABA#)
		
		 
		 
		 
		 
	
	 
		 
			 
				A percent field that allows 6 fraction digits. 
				e.g. 200% is represented as 200.000000
			
		
		 
			 
			 
		
	
	 
		 
			 Percent Decimal 6 field with claimed and computed attributes
		
		 
		 
		 
		 
	
	 
		 
			 Type for Paid Prepared Id
		
		 
			 
			 
		
	
	 
		 
			 NYPTINType with claimed and computed attributes
		
		 
		 
		 
		 
	
	 
		 
			 Type for NYS EIN
		
		 
			 
			 
		
	
	 
		 
			 NYEINType with claimed and computed attributes
		
		 
		 
		 
		 
	
	 
		 
			 Alphanumeric data item with 4 characters
		
		 
			 
			 
			 
		
	
	 
		 
			 Alphanumeric data item with 4 characters
		
		 
		 
		 
		 
	
	 
		 
			 Type for Paid Preparer name and Third Party name with restriction to prevent the word PREPARER
		
		 
			
		
	
	 
		 
			 prepNameType with claimed and computed attributes
		
		 
		 
		 
		 
	
	 
		 
			 String with 11 characters
		
		 
			 
			 
		
	
	 
		 
			 String with 11 characters
		
		 
		 
		 
		 
	
	 
		 
			 An indicator that can have a numeric value 1 only
		
		 
			 
		
	
	 
		 
			 Indicator field with claimed and computed attributes
		
		 
	
	 
		 
			 Alphanumeric data item with 2 characters
		
		 
			 
		
	
	 
		 
			 Alphanumeric data item with 2 characters
		
		 
		 
		 
		 
	
	 
		 
			 Used for a Name Control. Legal Characters: A-Z, 0-9, hyphen and ampersand. Illegal Character: spaces and symbols.
		
		 
			 
		
	
	 
		 
			 nameCntrlType with claimed and computed attributes
		
		 
		 
		 
		 
	







ACHVendorSchema/CommonSchemaLibrary/www/nystax/gov/global/schema/RecapReceiptsBO.xsd

 
	 
	 
		 
			 
				 
					 
						 
					
				
			
			 
				 
					 
						 
					
				
			
			 
				 
					 
						 
					
				
			
			 
			 
				 
					 
						 
					
				
			
			 
				 
					 
				
			
			 
			 
				 
					 
						 
					
				
			
			 
			 
			 
			 
			 
				 
					 
						 
					
				
			
			 
				 
					 
						 
					
				
			
			 
				 
					 
						 
					
				
			
			 
				 
					 
						 
					
				
			
			 
				 
					 
						 
					
				
			
		
	







ACHVendorSchema/CommonSchemaLibrary/www/nystax/gov/global/schema/TransmissionBO.xsd

 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
		 
			 
				 
					 
						 
					
				
			
			 
				 
					 
						 
					
				
			
			 
			 
			 
			 
		
	







ACHVendorSchema/SrcSchemaLibrary/www/nystax/gov/ach/schema/ACHPaymentBO.xsd

 
	 
	 
		 
			 
				 
					 
						 
					
				
			
			 
				 
					 
						 
					
				
			
			 
			 
				 
					 
				
			
			 
				 
					 
				
			
			 
				 
					 
				
			
			 
				 
					 
				
			
			 
				 
					 
				
			
			 
				 
					 
				
			
			 
			 
			 
			 
			 
			 
			 
			 
			 
			 
			 
				 
					 
						 
					
				
			
			 
				 
					 
						 
					
				
			
			 
				 
					 
						 
					
				
			
			 
			 
			 
			 
			 
			 
				 
					 
						 
					
				
			
			 
				 
					 
						 
					
				
			
			 
			 
				 
					 
						 
					
				
			
			 
				 
					 
						 
					
				
			
			 
				 
					 
						 
					
				
			
			 
				 
					 
						 
					
				
			
			 
				 
					 
						 
					
				
			
			 
				 
					 
						 
					
				
			
			 
			 
				 
					 
				
			
			 
				 
					 
				
			
			 
			 
			 
			 
			 
			 
			 
			 
			 
			 
			 
			 
			 
			 
			 
				 
					 
						 
					
				
			
			 
				 
					 
						 
					
				
			
		
	







ACHVendorSchema/SrcSchemaLibrary/www/nystax/gov/ach/schema/ProcessBO.xsd

 
	 
 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
		 
			 
			 
			 
			 
			 
			 
			 
			 
		
	







ACHVendorSchema/SrcSchemaLibrary/www/nystax/gov/ach/schema/PrompTaxBO.xsd

 
	 
	 
		 
			 
				 
					 
						 
					
				
			
			 
				 
					 
						 
					
				
			
			 
				 
					 
						 
					
				
			
			 
				 
					 
						 
					
				
			
			 
			 
			 
			 
			 
				 
					 
						 
					
				
			
			 
				 
					 
						 
					
				
			
			 
			 
			 
			 
				 
					 
						 
					
				
			
			 
				 
					 
						 
					
				
			
			 
				 
					 
						 
					
				
			
			 
				 
					 
						 
					
				
			
			 
				 
					 
						 
					
				
			
			 
				 
					 
						 
					
				
			
			 
			 
				 
					 
						 
					
				
			
			 
				 
					 
						 
					
				
			
			 
				 
					 
						 
					
				
			
			 
				 
					 
				
			
			 
			 
				 
					 
				
			
			 
			 
			 
			 
			 
			 
				 
					 
				
			
		
	







ACHVendorSchema/SrcSchemaLibrary/www/nystax/gov/ach/schema/TIFiduciaryBO.xsd

 
 
 
 
	 
		 
			 
				 
			
		
	
	 
		 
			 
				 
			
		
	
	 
		 
			 
				 
			
		
	









ACHVendorSchema/SrcSchemaLibrary/www/nystax/gov/ach/schema/TIPartnershipBO.xsd

 
 
 
 
	 
	 
		 
			 
				 
			
		
	
	 
		 
			 
				 
			
		
	









ACHVendorSchema/SrcSchemaLibrary/www/nystax/gov/ach/schema/TIPrimeBO.xsd

 
 
 
 
	 
		 
			 
				 
			
		
	
	 
		 
			 
				 
			
		
	
	 
		 
			 
				 
			
		
	
	 
		 
			 
				 
			
		
	
	 
		 
			 
				 
			
		
	









ACHVendorSchema/SrcSchemaLibrary/www/nystax/gov/ach/schema/TISalesBO.xsd

 
 
 
 
	 
		 
			 
				 
			
		
	
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 









ACHVendorSchema/SrcSchemaLibrary/www/nystax/gov/ach/schema/TISpouseBO.xsd

 
 
 
 
	 
		 
			 
				 
			
		
	
	 
		 
			 
				 
			
		
	
	 
		 
			 
				 
			
		
	
	 
		 
			 
				 
			
		
	
	 
		 
			 
				 
			
		
	
	 
		 
			 
				 
			
		
	
	 
		 
			 
				 
			
		
	
	 
		 
			 
				 
			
		
	









ACHVendorSchema/XSD Model - ACH payments.vsd

The height of the text box and its associated line increases or decreases as you add text. To change the width of the comment, drag  the side handle.



ACH Payments XSD Model



PrompTaxBO
(Source)



ProcessBO
(Source)



TISalesBO
(Source)



FilingKeysBO
(Common)



name=”tiSales”



TIPrimeBO
(Source)



name=”tiPrime”



TISpouseBO
(Source)



name=”tiSpouse”



ACHPaymentBO
(Source)



name=”achPayment"



name=”prompTax"



name=”filingKeys”
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